
Wyvern College Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2023

Company Registration Number:
08021829 (England and Wales)



Wyvern College Academy Trust
Contents

Page

Reference and Administrative Details 1

Trustees’ Report 3

Governance Statement 18

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance 23

Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities 24

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements 25

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report on Regularity 29

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income & Expenditure
Account 32

Group and Academy Balance Sheets 33

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 34

Notes to the Financial Statements 35



Wyvern College Academy Trust
Reference and Administrative Details

1

Members
I Clarke
E Goto (appointed 5 October 2022)
A Dorrington
H Douglas
L Smith

Trustees
N Couldrey
M Della
J Gregory
K Hercock
E Hussey
S Knight *
T Loder * (appointed 28 December 2022)
S Maclennan
J Roberts (appointed 15 August 2023)
B Rule *
L Smith *
R Stevens *
M Thornton *
J Verrico
M Zielinski (appointed 28 December 2022)
H Gunner * (resigned 6 February 2023)
L Harris (resigned 28 November 2022)
S Roberts-Penn * (resigned 30 October 2022)
* Finance Committee Member

Governance Professional
D Tyler

Senior Management Team
B Rule Headteacher and Accounting Officer
S Stocks Deputy Headteacher
J Firth Deputy Headteacher
W Emeny Director of Studies
T Foster Director of Studies
E Goss Director of Studies (Maternity Cover)
S Hall Assistant Headteacher
J Parker Operations Manager
M Westlake Business Manager
T Williams Assistant Headteacher



Wyvern College Academy Trust
Reference and Administrative Details

2

Company Name
Wyvern College Academy Trust

Principal and Registered Office
Wyvern College
Botley Road
Fair Oak
Eastleigh
Hampshire
SO50 7AN

Company Registration Number
08021829 (England and Wales)

Independent Auditor
Hopper Williams & Bell Limited
Statutory Auditor
Highland House
Mayflower Close
Chandlers Ford
Eastleigh
Hampshire
SO53 4AR

Bankers
Lloyds Bank Plc
36 Market Street
Eastleigh
Hampshire
S50 9YT

Solicitors
Browne Jacobson LLP
Mowbray House
Castle Meadow Road
Nottingham
NG2 1B



Wyvern College Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report

3

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of
the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The Trust operates a stand-alone secondary Academy for students aged 11 to 16, serving a catchment
area including Fair Oak, Horton Heath, Bishopstoke, Durley, and Upham, and which has a capacity of 1350
students and a roll of 1341 in the school census at October 2023.  Other age groups are catered for
through nursery and community activities provided by the Trust’s Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited
subsidiary.

The Trustees confirm that the Annual Report and financial statements of the Academy and the group
comply with the current statutory requirements, the requirements of the Academy and the group's
statutory documents and the provisions of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) "Accounting
and Reporting by Charities" effective from 1 January 2019.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.
The Trustees of Wyvern College Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Wyvern College Academy Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability
Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease
to be a Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

Trustees’ Indemnities
Trustees’ third-party indemnity is covered by Membership of the Risk Protection Arrangement. The limit
of indemnity is £10,000,000.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The Trustee Board has been formed by all the Trustees and in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The number of Trustees shall not be less than three and shall not be subject to any maximum. As and
when vacancies arise, or a shortage of specific skills is identified, the Trustees decide when recruitment
or elections will take place according to the availability of suitable candidates and convenient to the
operational needs of college.
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Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees (continued)
The following Trustees may be appointed:

· The Headteacher (if they choose) will always be an ex officio Trustee.
· Up to 10 Trustees appointed by the Members.
· A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees appointed by election (see note below).
· Unlimited Associate Trustees (appointed for their specific expertise), either with or without

voting rights, but without Trustee status, appointed by existing Trustees.
· Unlimited Emeritus Trustees (an honorary position in recognition of exceptional and outstanding

service to Wyvern College), without voting rights and without Trustee status.

Notes:
Parent Trustees are elected with all parents or guardians of students, who are registered at Wyvern
College at the time of the election, entitled to apply to stand as a candidate and/or vote by ballot paper,
either by post, in person or electronically in a secret ballot. If there are no more candidates than
vacancies, then the Trustees may appoint any or all of the candidates.

All Trustees are appointed for a four-year term of office, or less if requested by the Trustee. Should they
wish to continue in service at the expiry of their term, then their application for re-appointment is
considered by Members /Trustees. All officer positions within the Trustee Board are elected annually.

Mr. G Taylor and Mr. D Stupple hold lifetime, honorary status of emeritus Trustee.  Both were previously
serving Trustees of the college.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
The Wyvern Trustees are committed to supporting all new Trustees in their induction recognising that
the programme should be matched to their skills, prior experience, and individual development priorities.
The aim is to give them the necessary information and assistance to:

· Fulfil their role with confidence;
· strengthen effective governance; and
· retain Trustees.

Induction arrangements such as mentoring/support/shadowing, course attendance, and virtual training
programmes are tailored to individual needs.

Newly appointed Trustees are required to complete a Declaration of Interests form and undertake
safeguarding and Prevent training within a month of appointment.

The clerk will ensure the new governor receives an induction pack which should include a copy of the
safeguarding policies, the code of conduct and the college prospectus.
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Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees (continued)
All Trustees and Members are expected to act, behave and carry out their duties in an appropriate
manner, agree a Code of Conduct which is reviewed and re-adopted annually and undertake annual
safeguarding training.

We are committed to providing adequate opportunities for Trustees to undertake suitable training to
enable them to fulfil their role effectively. The Trustees maintain a Service Level Agreement with
Hampshire County Council’s Governor Services which gives Trustees access to all the courses they
provide. In addition, the Trustees have Gold membership of NGA (National Governors Association) and
membership of The Key.

Organisational Structure
Trustees
Wyvern Trustees have established a Scheme of Delegation which describes each decision-making process
and to whom those decisions are delegated. All decisions taken are reported to the Trustees (as described
below) who retain overall responsibility for them. The scheme is reviewed annually.

The Trustees devolve the responsibility of the day to day running of the college to the Headteacher and
Senior Leadership Team. Their activities and decisions are overseen by Trustee committees which usually
meet at least four times a year or additionally when deemed appropriate.

Following discussions and research focused on revising the governance structure the Trustees voted to
change the committee structure as a trial for the 2022/23 academic year.  Consequently, the Care,
Guidance & Support Committee merged with the Curriculum & Standards Committee into the
Safeguarding, Curriculum and Pastoral Committee. Similarly, the Finance/Audit and Personnel
Committee were combined into the Resources Committee. The terms of reference of the committees
were revised. The Pay & Conditions Committee remained as a stand-alone committee.

At the final meeting of the Full Trustee Board in July 2023 the Trustees voted to continue with the revised
structure pending the outcome of a self-evaluation that is to be undertaken in the autumn term 2023.

Additional meetings, working groups and panels e.g., disciplinary, dismissal, appeals, exclusion reviews;
cross campus and Wyvern Community Enterprise Directors, are convened for specific purposes as
necessary.

Some Trustees have specific responsibilities in addition to their committee roles, and these ensure
compliance with statutory requirements best practice within the Trustees’ responsibilities, e.g.,
safeguarding, special needs, internal finance responsibilities, internal cyber scrutiny, and health and
safety.
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Organisational Structure (continued)
Trustees have overall responsibility for ensuring that Wyvern College has an effective and appropriate
systems of control, financial and otherwise. However, such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. This provides only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Trustees has delegated to the Headteacher, as
Accounting Officer, the day-to-day responsibility of ensuring that the financial controls conform to the
requirements as stipulated in the Funding Agreement between Wyvern College and the Secretary of State
for Education. The Headteacher is also responsible for reporting to the Trustees any material weaknesses
or breakdowns in internal control.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The Trustees retain the decision for setting the pay and remuneration of all senior leaders. Additionally,
the Trustees makes the final decisions on staff pay increases recommended through the performance
management process. These decisions are informed through the work of the Pay Committee. A panel of
three Trustees carries out a rigorous review of the Headteacher’s performance against specific pre-set
targets to advise the Trustees on any changes to be made to remuneration. An external advisor is also
consulted to assist in this process.

Trade union facility time
The Academy had no employees who were relevant Union Officials in 2022-23.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
Wyvern operates independently of other organisations. The wholly owned subsidiary Wyvern
Community Enterprise Limited has a Board comprising of three senior staff and another three appointed
Directors.

Wyvern works closely with its six feeder schools but is not involved with the operating policies,
leadership, or governance of those schools. Where support is offered, it is designed to broaden the
education of our future students and ensure a smooth transition.

Wyvern College is a Member of the Wildern Teaching School Alliance working with other local partner
schools in the development of future professionals. Wyvern is not involved in the operating policies,
leadership, or governance of any of its partners in the alliance.

Trading subsidiary
Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Academy Trust and operates
as its trading company registered in England and Wales under registration number 8036069. The purpose
of the trading company is to enable the facilities of Wyvern College to be used by the wider community
and for monies raised to be donated back to the Academy Trust.
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Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims
The objects of the Academy Trust as stated in the Articles of Association are:

· to advance, for the public benefit, education in the UK, by establishing, maintaining, carry on,
managing and developing Wyvern College, offering a broad and balanced curriculum; and

· to promote, for the benefit of individuals living in Fair Oak, Bishopstoke, Horton Heath, Durley,
Upham and the surrounding area who have need because of their age, infirmity or disability,
financial hardship, or social and economic circumstances or for the public at large, the provision
of facilities for recreation or other leisure time activities in the interest of social welfare and with
the object of improving the condition of life of those individuals.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The principal activity of the college is to provide education for students of different abilities between the
ages of 11 and 16 with a broad and balanced curriculum, in a learning environment which is caring and
supportive.

Think Grow Care
Think Grow Care summarises our aspirations.  We aim to inspire our students towards personal
accomplishment and fulfilment; to become the finest versions of themselves. We therefore seek to draw
out of them their interests, talents, personal qualities, and aspirations. We also seek to draw out of them
a strong sense of social justice and responsibility; to use all that is good within them to make a difference
to the lives of others and to improve the world around them.

Values
Our ambition is that a Wyvern education leads students to:

· Academic accomplishment and fulfilment, provoking thought, curiosity, and scholarship.
Personal accomplishment and fulfilment so they become happy individuals with social maturity
and moral purpose.

· Appreciation of their place in the modern world, revealing the opportunities it offers them and
the responsibilities they owe to it.

· Self-discipline based upon the PRIDe values: Prepared, Respectful, Involved and Dedicated.

The specific and detailed objectives and activities for the academic year ending 31 August 2023 are
contained within the College Improvement Plan 2020-23.
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Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)

This is an operational document that is regularly updated. The Trustees review aspects of the plan every
term.

Public Benefit
The Trustee have given due regard to the guidance on public benefit offered in the Charity Commission’s
general guidance on public benefit.

Wyvern College Academy Trust provides an inclusive mixed education for 11-16 years old students within
the local community. Admissions criteria have matched county admissions criteria and no admission is
made based on ability. The college works closely with Hampshire County Council for both admissions and
appeals.
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Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance (including key performance indicators)
The college is an Ofsted “good” rated school in the last inspection in March 2018. Leaders, including
Trustees, have a strong vision for the education they want the college to provide based on “think deeply,
grow personally, care passionately.” Leaders balance their ambition for high academic standards with an
emphasis on developing students’ personal wellbeing, individuality and sense of duty to others.

Leaders, including Trustees, have ensured the curriculum is both ambitious and inclusive in its ambition.
At KS3, all students study all subjects that make up the National Curriculum; Trustees have scrutinised
curriculum plans to check that each subject’s curriculum matches the scope and ambition of the National
Curriculum. At KS4, the Ebacc has now been placed at the heart of the curriculum, with over 80% studying
the full Ebacc in year 10 and 84% studying it in year 9 from September 2023. Curriculum audits of each
British value and public sector equality duty show the curriculum prepares students for life in modern
Britain. Equality and diversity are championed. Those with protected characteristics, can “see
themselves” in the curriculum they study, as well as in the college vision which is displayed across the
site with images and quotes from different heritages and cultures. Discrimination and prejudice are not
tolerated and a racial equality steering group of parents has been established to guide leaders in how to
fulfil their public sector equality duty. Subject curriculum plans are coherently sequenced, comprehensive
and well structured. They detail what students are going to learn and how this builds on prior learning
and prepares for subsequent learning. Assessment links directly to the knowledge and skills identified in
a curriculum plan. Students are assessed on whether or not they have successfully acquired the planned
curriculum content. Teachers report this to parents.

Leaders are using the pupil premium effectively, securing improvements in outcomes for these students
The college’s in-class intervention model (Class Plans) involves teachers identifying needs and putting in
place in-class interventions to meet those needs. Teacher entries are centralised into a SIMS database,
which enables teachers to see and learn from each other’s interventions for each child. The Class Plan
approach, linked to teachers’ performance management, has had an impact on attainment, progress,
attendance and behaviour: Exam performance for students with PP has improved since the last
inspection in 2018 when the college had the second worst progress 8 score in the county for PP. In 2022,
it was exactly the national average PP progress 8 score of -0.6, above the country average of -0.9 and the
regional average of -0.8. The gap between PP and non-PP attainment 8 was much lower in 2022 (-11.8%)
than it was across the county (18.5%). Attendance for pupil premium students in 2022-23 (at 84.2%) was
above the county and borough averages (83.5 and 82.7% respectively).  The proportion of PP students
who were persistently absent in 2022-23 was below county and borough averages (39.7% compared to
43.0 and 43.6% respectively). The latest comparative data available for suspensions in the borough and
county is for the period Sept 2022- April 2023, showing suspension rates for Wyvern PP students have
improved and are below county and borough averages.

The leadership and management of SEND has been restructured; this has brought about significant
improvements in SEND outcomes.
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Achievements and Performance (including key performance indicators) (continued)
The Class Plans database is used for SEND provision: it is where important information regarding student
needs and recommended adjustments are disseminated to teachers. It is also where teachers recorded
their own further in-class interventions – again for all staff to see and learn from. Attendance rates for
SEND support students have improved from significantly below the national average, 4% in 2021-22) to
above (+0.4% in 2022-23). The latest comparative data available for suspensions in the borough and
county is for the period September 2022 to April 2023. This shows that suspension rates for Wyvern PP
students were below county and borough averages. In 2023, attainment for SEND students increased
significantly from that of 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, even though their prior attainment had not
increased. Their attainment 8 score was 29.8 in 2021 and 2022 and increased to 38.1 in 2023.  46%
attained the Basics threshold in 2023, compared to 28% in 2022.

The progress made by SEND students has historically been lower than in other schools (P8 was -0.95 in
2022 compared to a national average of -0.69) but this year’s significant increase in attainment has
yielded a SISRA estimate of +0.28, with +0.22 for English, +0.39 for Maths, +0.56 in Ebacc and -0.06 in the
open element. SISRA shows strong value added scores in Science (+0.59), MFL (+0.4) and Humanities
(+1.25).

The college has recently (Sept 2022) put in place a transition curriculum for students at the early stages
of reading; this has been very successful.

All students joining the college with a scaled KS2 reading score below 100 are individually assessed and
placed upon different levels of support. Assessment data shows they make strong progress. The
interventions are needs-led. Students are assessed for gaps in their phonics knowledge and these gaps
then form the basis of the lessons. However, this curriculum is not limited to phonics but focuses also on
reading fluency, reading comprehension and vocabulary development. This work has significantly
accelerated students’ progress: for the 14 students with a reading age of 5-6 in Sept 2022 they improved
by an average 1.9 years by June 2023. Students joining with reading ages of 7-8 increased by an average
of 1.2 years by June 2023.

Sharper self-evaluation and college improvement processes and documentation have driven these
improvements.

The introduction of Subject Improvement Records (SIRs) and Pastoral Improvement Records (PIRs) have
ensured that curriculum and Pastoral Leaders understand how their responsibilities in their areas link
directly to the college improvement plan, leading to a more consistent and joined up approach to tackling
improvement priorities.

The curriculum prepares students well for life in modern Britain, emphasising safe relationships, diversity,
equality, and citizenship.
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Achievements and Performance (including key performance indicators) (continued)
PSHE is well established from year 7 to year 11. Subject specialists deliver a carefully crafted “RPS”
curriculum which interleaves units of citizenship, RE and PSHE. Students are taught how to keep
themselves safe; they discuss current affairs; they learn about other faiths and cultures; they learn about
justice, democracy and human rights. Relationships and sex education are compliant with 2019 DfE
guidance. At Wyvern, students receive high quality age-appropriate education, including the principle of
consent. Internal QA shows that there is high quality curriculum intent and implementation in RPS. RPS
lessons are supplemented by sessions in tutor time and assemblies, which are mapped to the college
vision of Think Grow Care.  The curriculum provides valuable opportunities for students to broaden their
understanding of diversity within society. Curriculum plans show there is now a broader range of authors,
artists, musicians, cuisines and historical figures for students to study, which reflect society more
accurately. These opportunities are ensuring there is wide-ranging provision for pupils’ wider
development. As a result, they are well prepared for life in modern Britain.

Curriculum audits of each British value and public sector equality duty show the curriculum prepares
students for life in modern Britain. The tutor time curriculum has recently been developed and includes
units of Knowledge is Power which involve virtually “visiting” and then discussing places and events of
importance to different cultures around the world; it includes literacy units where texts from different
cultures inform student attitudes to important subjects. It includes units on Rights and Freedoms which
develop positive attitudes to a range of social, safeguarding and moral situations/issues and which makes
students more tolerant and respectful of those who are different to them.

Student involvement in extra-curricular activities is actively planned, promoted, and monitored. At Key
Stage 3, the STRIVE programme features in the tutor time curriculum. Formally accredited and rewarded
within the college, it develops personal qualities, with students setting themselves and working towards
a series of personal challenges. This includes volunteering and involvement in enrichment events, either
within or outside of college.

The annual pastoral review day has enabled tutors to meet with parents and students to plan and track
which activities students take part in inside and outside of schools to make sure that all students,
particularly those with SEND or who are PP, have opportunities to enhance their life experiences.

The number and range of extra-curricular clubs within school is impressive. This includes clubs linked to
taught subjects; clubs set up by students to share personal interests; sports activities leading to
competitions; performing arts opportunities in drama, dance, and music which lead to public
performances. Large numbers of pupils complete the Duke of Edinburgh Award; there are opportunities
for international travel in MFL, Geography and History. Trips and visits are connected to learning in
lessons. The new tutor programme includes a series of virtual visits to places of cultural importance, both
within the UK and internationally. All these opportunities help build cultural capital.
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Achievements and Performance (including key performance indicators) (continued)
Each subject provides opportunities for additional academic study beyond the taught curriculum in a
series of “super-curricular” activities. Students are proud to take on a range of responsibilities, as
librarians, prefects, reading/numeracy ambassadors, sports leaders, team captains, anti-bullying
ambassadors, vocal ambassadors, charity reps and tutor reps. They are proud of work they have done to
support charities and the community. Groups of KS4 students organise citizenship campaigns to raise
awareness of issues and to bring about change to address them; some are based within college; others
extend to the local community.

Students receive high quality pastoral care, guidance and advice. Support groups exist for bereaved
students, young carers, LGBTQ students and those living with an alcoholic parent. The school has active
groups which raise awareness about LGBTQ issues. The student lifestyle survey shows that students are
very accepting of difference. Careers’ guidance is effective; students receive careers advice from year 7
to year 11; there are careers fairs, visits to universities and employers. Performance in Gatsby
benchmarks is above local and national averages. Destination data shows that a very high proportion of
students successfully move onto sixth from, college or training after year 11. For 2022 leavers: 94.3% of
leavers went to Raising the Participation Age compliant settings, above the LA average of 92.3%. Of the
non-RPA situations, 0% were NEET, compared to the LA average of 41%. 57% went on to study an
academic curriculum (A-Levels), above the LA average of 51%.

Rates of attendance and persistent absence have improved from worse than county and national
averages at the last inspection to significantly better.

Leaders have successfully educated parents on the effects of absence on student wellbeing and
achievement. Parents knows the college will hold them to account for absences. Performance
management systems hold pastoral leaders accountable too; fortnightly meetings with the attendance
officer and weekly meetings with their tutors on the issue of attendance has ensured early interventions
and a trajectory of strong improvement. Overall attendance for 2022-23 was 92.2% significantly better
than national average (90.7%) and the regional average (90.4%).  Persistent absence (21%) was
significantly lower than national average (28%) and regional average (28%). Attendance for FSM students
(83.6%) was significantly below the national average (85.3%) but well above the regional average (82.9%).
Attendance for SEND support has improved from significantly below national average in 2021-2022
(82.1% to 85.5%) to above the national average in 2022-23 (86.1% to 85.8%) and significantly above the
regional average (85.1%).

Behaviour in lessons is typically good, with strong relations between staff and students and shared
understanding of what is expected.

There are clearly defined expectations about student behaviour for lessons (the PRIDe behaviours) with
one process (the Four Point Plan) for responding to disruption. As a result, students know what is
expected of them and the large majority have responded well. PRIDE score data shows that the large
majority of students comply with the PRIDE behaviours, week after week. The majority of students do
not get a single detention. Achievement points outnumber behaviour points at ratio of 5 to 1.
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Achievements and Performance (including key performance indicators) (continued)
Suspensions for in class persistent disruption to learning have fallen; the Inclusion programme has
successfully reduced repeat suspensions for in class disruption. The number of students in the isolation
room is comparatively small, with an average of between 4 and 7 per day.

Behaviour at social times is also good and has improved as a result of whole-college improvement work.
On a typical day, the site is calm, well ordered and safe. It is highly supervised. Expectations of out-of-
lesson behaviours (RESPECT) were launched last year and saw a rise in suspensions as these new
standards were reinforced. As a result, break time behaviour improved and suspensions for these reasons
has fallen. Students whose behaviour falls short at break time are confined to the Restricted Break Zone
(RBZ) for a series of break times. This has acted as a strong deterrent and helped ensure students behave
in line with expectations.

Students attain grades that are above the national average. Their average attainment 8 score in 2022
(50.7) was above county and national averages (48.9 and 48.8). This was replicated in 2023 (49.3 to 46.4),
with the performance gap increasing from +1.4 to +2.4. Bucking the national trend, there was an increase
in attainment at the grade 4+ threshold in 2023. The proportion of students gaining 5 good passes at
GCSE including English and Maths increased from 67% in 2022 to 70% in 2023. The proportion gaining
the basics threshold of 4+ in both English and Maths increased from 72% in 2019 and 2022 to 74% in
2023. Bucking the national trend, there was no decrease in attainment at the grade 5+ threshold in 2023.
In 2023 the proportion of students gaining 5 strong passes including English and Maths remained at the
2022 level of 47%. The proportion gaining grade 5 in both English and Maths increased from 48% in 2019
to 49 % in 2022 and remained at 49% in 2023.

Students make stronger progress than in other schools. Students throughout the college are make good
progress in the majority of subjects, evidenced by P8 scores for the two most recent years where
comparisons can be made: 2019 and 2023 (2023 SISRA estimated P8 scores). For these 2 years, progress
is strong in Maths (+0.32 in 2019 and +0.28 for 2023), Ebacc (+0.53 and +0.5), Science (+0.4 and +0.4),
MFL (+0.16) and Humanities (+0,7 and +0.67).

SISRA subject progress indices show that the students’ progress in the following non-Ebacc subjects was
stronger than the national average: Applied RE, Art, Citizenship, Creative iMedia, Dance, Food, ICT Media
and Music.

The progress made by PP students is not as strong as that made by their peers but compares favourably
to other local schools: in 2022 the P8 score (-0.6) was higher than the LA average (-0.9) and regional
average (-0.8).

The progress made by SEND students has historically been lower than in other schools (P8 was -0.95 in
2022 compared to a national average of -0.69) but this year’s significant increase in attainment has
yielded a SISRA estimate of +0.28, with +0.22 for English, +0.39 for Maths, +0.56 in Ebacc and -0.06 in the
open element. SISRA shows strong value-added scores in Science (+0.59), MFL (+0.4) and Humanities
(+1.25).
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Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.

Financial Review
The college is currently in a fair financial position as indicted by the financial statements and the
monitoring of the Finance Committee. The Trustees have re-appointed Mr. M Della as the Responsible
Officer/Internal Auditor for this accounting period, and the accounting officer is the college Headteacher,
Mr. B Rule.

The major part of the income is from the ESFA (Education and Skills Funding Agency) in the form of the
general annual grant based primarily on student numbers: this grant is restricted for use against specific
purposes.  The ESFA provides further income for pupil premium and the local authority provides special
needs funding.  Funds received during the period ending 31 August 2023 and associated expenditure can
be seen in the Restricted Funds Statement of Financial Activities and are assigned in the financial
statements in accordance with the guidelines set down by the Charity Commission Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP).

During the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 the college received £9,832,051 (2022:
£9,070,600) of funding from the ESFA and other sources with expenditure against this income of
£9,724,149 (2022: £8,771,323) (figures stated excluding restricted pension fund and restricted fixed asset
fund). The net current assets at the year-end were £949,151 (2022: £1,978,548).

At 31 August 2023 the net book value of fixed assets was £17,741,841 (2022: £17,598,554), of which
£17,600,518 (2022: £17,414,369) relates to land and buildings.  The assets were used exclusively for
supporting the provision of education and the associated support services to the students of Wyvern
College.

The current Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) pension fund liability is £128,000 (2022:
£669,000).

The major part of the college’s expenditure has been for salaries and building related payments.
Expenditure underpins the objectives set out in the College Improvement Plan and with all financial
transactions best value is considered.

Finances in the 2022-23 have been affected by an unprecedented situation affecting the totality of trust
staffing costs which was beyond the control of the College. This has now been fully resolved. However, it
has contributed to the resulting deficit budget for 2022-23. Trustees, Leadership and Management are
fully aware of this issue and therefore the need to utilise our reserves.
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Financial Review (continued)
Additional scrutiny of the ongoing financial situation and specifically the budget implications for 2023-24
will be undertaken by the Finance team and the Trustees Resource audit and risk committee.

By the short-term placement of funds into higher interest accounts offered by our existing banker, the
College is benefitting from additional interest. This is helping to offset the effect of inflation.

Reserves Policy
The Trustee's policy is to review the levels of working capital each half-term. This review considers the
nature of the income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the
nature of the funds available. The policy of the Trustee Board is to maintain adequate free reserves, this
year being £550,657 (2022: £530,546) as at 31 August 2023.

The reserves policy is to:
· Maintain adequate free reserves.
· Ensure a stable base for the Academy to continue its operation.
· Enhance teaching and learning opportunities for students.
· Provide sufficient funds for short term capital investment.
· Ensure excessive reserves are not accumulated.

Decision making is informed by projections from our three-year budget planning. The reserves as at 31
August 2023 were as follows:

· Unrestricted (free) reserves of £550,657 (2022: £530,546).
· A restricted fixed asset fund of £17,741,841 (2022: £18,529,184), which can only be realised

through disposal of tangible fixed assets.
· A pension deficit of £128,000 (2022: £669,000).
· Other restricted funds of £292,871 (2022: £453,406).
· Total funds of £18,457,369 (2022: £18,844,136).

Investment Policy
The college aims to manage its cash balances to provide for the day to day working capital requirements
of its operations, whilst protecting the real long-term value of any surplus cash balances against inflation.
Lloyds Bank is the college banker and holds a range of accounts. Given the anticipated increases in salaries
and utilities there are no immediate plans to re-open the investment account, however in the longer
term, any investment made will be under the following principals:

· To ensure cash balances in the current account are sufficient to cover day to day running costs.
· To ensure that, for all funds invested, there is minimal risk of loss in the value of those funds.
· To protect the capital value of invested funds against inflation.
· To maximise returns on short term surplus balances.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
A robust Risk Register is maintained and overseen by the Resource and Audit Committee. This details
potential risks across different sectors- Strategic and Reputational, Operational, Compliance, and
Financial.

On 30 June 2012, the Academy Trust inherited a pension deficit from Hampshire County Council relating
to its support staff and although the present deficit must be reported, this deficit does not impact on the
free reserves.

Trustees have commissioned and received a long-term maintenance plan with an expert firm, which has
identified a long-term strategy for the maintenance and improvement of the built estate. This has also
identified improvement relating to decarbonisation plans and the need to fully embrace these
requirements as time progresses. Trustees are kept fully appraised of detailed building and maintenance
issues and use the GEMS software as part of regular monitoring and inclusion for future CIF and
decarbonation bids.

The Academy holds a mechanical and electrical SLA with a reputable firm (along with 6 other Academies)
that monitor and maintain statutory requirements.

Trustees continue to monitor the local housing developments and the proximity of the new Secondary
school which has opened for these developments.

Fundraising
As part of its work within the community, the Academy Trust undertakes fundraising activities, for
example through fetes, cake sales, non-uniform days etc. The Academy Trust raises funds in order to
support its own operations and also to make donations to local and national charities.  The Academy
Trust undertakes all such activities itself, with the help of its students and their families. We confirm that
when fundraising:

· No unsolicited approaches are made to members of the public.
· No commercial participators are used.
· No regularity schemes or standards are applicable.
· No complaints were made to the Academy Trust during the year.
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Plans for Future Periods
In the long term the Trustees are aware that pupil numbers have stabilised and the college will not benefit
from increased funds, as capacity cannot be increased. There has been some increase in the funding to
support SEND and Pupil premium students.

Expenditure will continue to be carefully monitored and this will be achieved through detailed 3 year
budget forecasting. In the meantime, Trustees and management recognised the need to embed economy
measures. Areas for further consideration are:

· Securing the financial viability of option groups and class sizes.
· Continuing to seek further cost-effective ways to achieve more efficient systems and processes.
· Considering further revenue generation by optimising the use of the college’s assets and

resources.

During this year 2022-23 we have undertaken a variety of planned sustainable refurbishment, repair and
maintenance projects to improve the classrooms, academic department and administrative areas. The
aim is to enhance the working and learning experience of students and staff as well as to reduce overhead
costs and increase efficiency. Works of urgent needs or where health and safety is an issue continue to
be undertaken in the short term. Further work to complete the final phase of security is planned for 2023-
24. The college continues to research and bid for development funds through the Condition Improvement
Fund provided by the ESFA.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others
There were no funds held as custodian Trustee on behalf of others during the year.

Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

· there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware
· the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees,
as the company directors, on 11 December 2023 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

L Smith
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of Responsibility
As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Wyvern College Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
Competency Framework for Governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the
funding agreement between Wyvern College Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns
in internal control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in
the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met eight times during
the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

FTB
Total Meetings for the Year 8

Nicholas Couldrey 2

Martin Della 6
James Gregory 5

Helen Gunner 2(2)

Leigh Ann Harris 0(2)
Karen Hercock 7

Ella Hussey 7

Sarah Knight 2
Tina Loder 5(5)

Sally McLennan 3

John Roberts 0(0)
Sarah Roberts-Penn 2(2)

Ben Rule 8

Lynda Smith 8
Richard Stevens 1

Mike Thornton 7

John Verrico 6
Maxine Zielinski 5(5)
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Governance (continued)
The Trustees received three resignations during this year. Two were Trustees no longer able to dedicate
their time to the role and a third Trustee resigned on their appointment to a staff position at the college.
We recruited a further three Trustees all appointed by the Board of Trustees. The last of these was
approved at the end of the school year after all meetings were concluded.

In September the Trustees Board discussed how best to strengthen the knowledge base of all Trustees.
Consequently in January 2023 the Finance and Audit Committee merged with personnel to create a
Resources Committee. Similarly the Curriculum and Standards Committee merged with the Care
Guidance and Support Committee to establish the safeguarding curriculum and Pastoral Committee. In
the final meeting of the Trustee Board the outcome of these changes was evaluated and it was decided
to continue this structure in the academic year 2023-24.

The Pay Committee still operates separately – with identified members serving on all meetings for that
year. A number of Trustee Disciplinary Committees were required – membership of these is determined
as required.

Conflicts of interest:
Interests are declared at the beginning of each year, in September. They are recorded in Governor Hub
and published on the college website. Every FTB and committee meeting has an opening item that allows
the declaration of any changed or additional interests in general, or related to items on the meeting
agenda.

Governance reviews:
The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to:
A: Verify:

· that the Academy is compliant with the Academy Handbook 2023 (ATH) -see Musts in appendix
A), EFSA/DfE regulations and all the requirements under the legislation covering Health and
Safety, Employment and Company Law;

· that the use of all our resources (including present and reserve funding) are focused on securing
and improving outcomes for all our students;

· that we are meeting our duty of care to all students and staff in terms of health and safety in the
college environment and during official off-site activities; and

· that the well-being of all students and staff is considered at all times.

B: Support the investment of funds and reserves to meet the aims of the College Improvement Plan



Wyvern College Academy Trust
Governance Statement

20

Governance (continued)
Resources

Total Meetings for the Year 6
Helen Gunner 2(2)

Tina Loder 4(4)

Sarah Roberts-Penn 2(2)
Ben Rule 6

Lynda Smith 6

Richard Stevens 3(3)
Mike Thornton 4

Review of Value for Money
As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers
to the educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in
return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the
Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

· Investment in two teaching areas’ replacement LED lighting to reduce energy costs
· Ancillary works to improve security and safety for students and comply with Health and safety

regulations
· Greater analysis of course and group sizes to ensure streamlined staffing structure

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in
place in Wyvern College Academy Trust for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to Handle Risk
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022
to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework
The Academy Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. In particular, it includes:

· comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

· regular reviews by the Resources /Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes

· setting targets to measure financial and other performance
· clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
· identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not
to appoint an auditor for this purpose. However, the Trustees have appointed Martin Della a Trustee, to
carry out a programme of internal checks.

The internal reviewer’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks
on the Academy Trust’s financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current
period included:

· Testing of purchase systems.
· Testing of Income systems.
· Testing of Accounting systems.
· An additional review was made to summarise the working capital for each month during the

period.

On an annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Resources/Audit
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’
financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the
areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the Committee consider actions
and assess year on year progress.

The Resource/Audit committee oversees the internal reviewers schedule of work. The subsequent report
provides details of any material control issues arising from the work and checks undertaken, and
describes any remedial actions to be taken to rectify the issues.
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Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

· the work of the internal reviewer
· the work of the external auditor
· the school resource management self-assessment tool
· the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the

development and maintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Resources/ Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 11 December 2023 and signed on its
behalf by:

L Smith B Rule
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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As Accounting Officer of Wyvern College Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for
estates safety and management, under the funding agreement between the Academy Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements
of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Academy Trust’s funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook
2022.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety, or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

B Rule
Accounting Officer
11 December 2023
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

· select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
· observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts

Direction 2022 to 2023
· make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
· state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
· prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume

that the charitable group will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the group’s and charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the group and charitable company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the group and charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the group and charitable
company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety
and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE
have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable group’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 11 December 2023 and signed on its
behalf by:

L Smith
Chair of Trustees
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Wyvern College Academy Trust (‘the parent charitable
company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (including the Income and Expenditure Account), the
Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities
SORP 2019, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:
· give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent charitable company’s

affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of the group’s incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

· have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

· have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
· have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies

Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable group’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. It
includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees’ Report (including the Strategic Report),
and the Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

· the information given in the Trustees’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

· the Trustees’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

· adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us;

· the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
· certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
· we have not obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the purposes of our

audit.
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Responsibilities of the Trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
parent charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either
intend to liquidate the group or the parent charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent
Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

· We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Academy Trust, and the sector in which it operates. These include but are not limited to
compliance with the Companies Act 2006, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102
'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities
SORP 2019, the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023.

· We obtained an understanding of how the Academy Trust is complying with these frameworks
through discussions with management.
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· We enquired with management whether there were any instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations or whether they had knowledge of actual or suspected fraud. These enquiries
are corroborated through follow-up audit procedures including but not limited to a review of
legal and professional costs, correspondence and a review of board minutes.

· We assessed the susceptibility of the Academy Trust’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including the risk of fraud and management override of controls. We designed our
audit procedures to respond to this assessment, including the identification and testing of any
related party transactions and the testing of journal transactions that arise from management
estimates, that are determined to be of significant value or unusual in their nature.

· We assessed the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team, including consideration of the engagement team’s knowledge and
understanding of the sector in which the Academy Trust operates in, and their practical
experience through training and participation with audit engagements of a similar nature.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our Independent Auditor’s Report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

G Brown FCCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Hopper Williams & Bell Limited
Statutory Auditor
Highland House, Mayflower Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh SO53 4AR

Date ………………………………………………
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 September 2022 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether
the expenditure disbursed and income received by Wyvern College Academy Trust during the period 1
September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Wyvern College Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Wyvern College
Academy Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Wyvern College Academy Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Wyvern College Academy Trust’s Accounting Officer and the reporting
accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Wyvern College Academy Trust’s
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 June 2012 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received
is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and
the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything
has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have
not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform
to the authorities which govern them.
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Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information
and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative
conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express
a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the Academy Trust’s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
· Consideration as to whether prior approval was sought from the Secretary of State where it is

required by the Academy Trust Handbook (effective from 1 September 2022) (ATH).
· Review of any special payments to staff, including compromise agreements, to consider whether

prior approval was sought where required by the ATH and that any payments are in line with the
severance guidance published by ESFA.

· Consideration as to whether any borrowings have been made in accordance with the ATH.
· Review of any ‘minded to’ letters or Notices to Improve which have been issued to the Academy

Trust.
· Review of any transactions with related parties to ensure that they have been carried out in

accordance with the ATH.
· Review of governance arrangements to determine whether the requirements of the ATH have

been met.
· Review of the Academy Trust’s internal controls, including whether the general control

environment has regard to the regularity of underlying transactions, including fraud
management.

· Review of the Academy Trust’s procurement policies to determine effectiveness and testing a
sample of purchases to confirm that the policies have been correctly implemented.

· Identifying any conditions associated with specialist grant income and determining whether it
has been spent as the purposes intended.
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Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects
the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023
has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform
to the authorities which govern them.

G Brown FCCA
Reporting Accountant
Hopper Williams & Bell Limited
Chartered Accountants
Highland House, Mayflower Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh SO53 4AR

Date ………………………………………………
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Total
2021/22

Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 26,000 - - 77,082 103,082 1,022,260
Other trading activities 5 1,059,824 - - - 1,059,824 970,126
Investments 6 11,869 - - - 11,869 143

Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy
trust’s educational operations 4 - 8,734,358 - - 8,734,358 8,100,331

Total 1,097,693 8,734,358 - 77,082 9,909,133 10,092,860

Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 1,058,092 - - - 1,058,092 866,654
Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational
operations 8 4,490 8,661,567 166,000 1,112,751 9,944,808 9,147,558

Total 1,062,582 8,661,567 166,000 1,112,751 11,002,900 10,014,212

Net income / (expenditure) 35,111 72,791 (166,000) (1,035,669) (1,093,767) 78,648

Transfers between funds 17 (15,000) (233,326) - 248,326 - -

Other recognised gains / (losses):

26 - - 707,000 - 707,000 4,983,000

Net movement in funds 20,111 (160,535) 541,000 (787,343) (386,767) 5,061,648

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 530,546 453,406 (669,000) 18,529,184 18,844,136 13,782,488
Total funds carried forward 550,657 292,871 (128,000) 17,741,841 18,457,369 18,844,136

Academy Trust's
net movement in funds 78,894 72,793 541,000 (1,033,665) (340,978) 4,991,178
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Group and Academy Balance Sheets as at 31 August 2023
Company Number 08021829

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 17,741,841 17,598,554 17,733,503 17,588,212

Current assets
Debtors 14 548,857 775,938 475,594 756,128
Cash at bank and in hand 1,425,304 1,735,195 1,402,503 1,642,202

1,974,161 2,511,133 1,878,097 2,398,330
Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 15 (1,025,010) (532,585) (936,631) (489,595)

Net current assets 949,151 1,978,548 941,466 1,908,735

Total assets less current liabilities 18,690,992 19,577,102 18,674,969 19,496,947

Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (105,623) (63,966) (60,000) -

Net assets excluding pension liability 18,585,369 19,513,136 18,614,969 19,496,947

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 26 (128,000) (669,000) (128,000) (669,000)

Total net assets 18,457,369 18,844,136 18,486,969 18,827,947

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund 17 17,741,841 18,529,184 17,733,503 18,518,842
Restricted income fund 17 292,871 453,406 292,871 453,406
Pension reserve 17 (128,000) (669,000) (128,000) (669,000)
Total restricted funds 17,906,712 18,313,590 17,898,374 18,303,248

Unrestricted income funds 17 550,657 530,546 588,595 524,699

Total funds 18,457,369 18,844,136 18,486,969 18,827,947

L Smith
Chair of Trustees

The financial statements on pages 32 to 59 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 11 December
2023 and are signed on their behalf by:

The notes on pages 35 to 59 form part of these financial statements.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2023

Note 2023 2022
£ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 20 706,900 420,704

Cash flows from financing activities 21 51,854 23,699

Cash flows from investing activities 22 (1,068,645) 371,550

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (309,891) 815,953

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2022 1,735,195 919,242

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2023 23 1,425,304 1,735,195
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1 Accounting policies

Group financial statements
These financial statements consolidate the results of the Academy Trust and its wholly owned subsidiary, Wyvern
Community Enterprise Limited, on a line by line basis. A separate Statement of Financial Activities for the parent
Academy Trust itself is not presented. The registered office address of Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited is
the same as the registered office address of the parent Academy Trust.

The Trust has taken advantage of exemption under the terms of FRS 102 not to disclose a cash flow for the
Academy Trust alone as it is included within the consolidated cash flow.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are prepared in
sterling which is the functional currency of the Academy Trust and are rounded to the nearest £1.

Going Concern
The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

•

•

•

•

• Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers on conversion/into the Academy Trust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated
over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust‘s accounting policies.

Donated goods, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’
and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value
the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they
are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

•

•

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Leasehold Land and Buildings 5-50 years straight line on buildings; not provided on land
Furniture and Equipment 10 years straight line
Computer Equipment 3 years straight line

Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

No depreciation has been provided on long leasehold land as it is similar to freehold land, which does not require
depreciation.

Where the Academy Trust can identify the value of major components of freehold or leasehold buildings based
upon additions following conversion to academy status, the Academy Trust reviews whether one or more such
components have significantly different patterns of consumption of economic benefits. In such cases, the
Academy Trust allocates the cost of the asset to its major components and depreciates each component
separately over its useful life.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the
asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and
carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed
asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than land and assets under construction, at rates
calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Tangible Fixed Assets
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. An investment is treated
as a cash equivalent when it has a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is
not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to
deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due from the charity’s wholly owned
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts due from the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at
face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank

Investments
The academy’s shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited, is included in
the balance sheet at the cost of the share capital owned less any impairment. There is no readily available market
value and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

Financial Instruments
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders
where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and
the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of
current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with
no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution
scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

2 General Annual Grant (GAG)

The Academy Trust has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2023.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted 2022/23 2021/22
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Capital grants - 77,082 77,082 1,003,691
Donated fixed assets 26,000 - 26,000 18,569
Other donations 26,000 - 26,000 -

26,000 77,082 103,082 1,022,260

Total 2022 - 1,022,260 1,022,260

The assumptions used are disclosed in note 26.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was subject to limits at 31 August
2023 on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An amount equal to 12% of
GAG could be carried forward, of which up to 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes, with any balance
being available for premises/capital purposes.

Critical areas of judgement
There are no other critical areas of judgement.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results
from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

4 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted 2022/23 2021/22
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 7,486,375 7,486,375 7,286,068
Pupil Premium - 250,240 250,240 226,452
Rates reclaim - 30,720 30,720 38,866
Other DfE grants - 504,110 504,110 190,899

- 8,271,445 8,271,445 7,742,285

Other Government grants
Local authority grants - 279,433 279,433 194,607

Other income from the Academy Trust’s educational operations
Trip income - 81,195 81,195 10,127
Tuition fee income - 18,374 18,374 24,940
Catering income - 21,425 21,425 17,917
Other income - 62,486 62,486 110,455

- 183,480 183,480 163,439

- 8,734,358 8,734,358 8,100,331

Total 2022 - 8,100,331 8,100,331

5 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted 2022/23 2021/22
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 184,210 - 184,210 142,178
Childcare 739,879 - 739,879 712,796
Health and fitness 90,956 - 90,956 78,183
Courses 39,542 - 39,542 27,857
Other trading income 5,237 - 5,237 9,112

1,059,824 - 1,059,824 970,126

Total 2022 970,126 - 970,126
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

6 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted 2022/23 2021/22
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 11,869 - 11,869 143

Total 2022 143 - 143

7 Expenditure

Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2022/23 2021/22

£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure on raising funds 921,642 - 136,450 1,058,092 866,654
Academy's educational operations:

Direct costs 5,673,397 - 1,790,707 7,464,104 6,181,116
Allocated support costs 1,375,095 677,498 428,111 2,480,704 2,966,442

7,970,134 677,498 2,355,268 11,002,900 10,014,212

Total 2022 7,912,459 544,061 1,557,692 10,014,212

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:
2022/23 2021/22

£ £
Operating lease rentals 21,293 24,045
Depreciation 386,116 428,226
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets 726,635 -
Fees payable to auditor for:

Audit 12,505 11,425
Other services 5,245 5,695

 Non Pay Expenditure
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

8 Charitable activities

2022/23 2021/22
Total Total

£ £
Direct costs – educational operations 7,464,104 6,181,116
Support costs – educational operations 2,480,704 2,966,442

9,944,808 9,147,558

Analysis of support costs:
Teaching Educational 2022/23 2021/22

school hub operations Total Total
£ £ £ £

Support staff costs - 1,375,095 1,375,095 1,917,092
Depreciation - 99,150 99,150 140,952
Premises costs - 677,498 677,498 544,061
Other support costs - 314,811 314,811 349,137
Governance costs - 14,150 14,150 15,200
Total support costs - 2,480,704 2,480,704 2,966,442

Total 2022 - 2,966,442 2,966,442

Premises costs includes £nil (2022: £47,663) in respect of expenditure on capital projects, which were funded by
capital grants from the ESFA.
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Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

9 Staff

a) Staff costs
Staff costs during the period were:

2022/23 2021/22
£ £

Wages and salaries 5,757,355 5,284,460
Social security costs 594,133 533,353
Pension costs 1,481,037 1,884,563

7,832,525 7,702,376
Agency staff costs 137,609 210,083

7,970,134 7,912,459

b) Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2022/23 2021/22
No. No.

Teachers 87 91
Administration and support 140 155
Management 10 9

237 255

c) Higher paid staff

2022/23 2021/22
No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 4 3
£70,001 - £80,000 2 1
£90,001 - £100,000 - 1
£100,001 - £110,000 1 -

d) Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust
was £853,794 (2022: £764,725).

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer national
insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

10 Related Party Transactions – Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

The value of Trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:
2022/23 2021/22

£000 £000
B Rule Remuneration 105-110 95-100
(Staff trustee and Accounting Officer) Employer’s pension contributions paid 25-30 20-25

E Hussey Remuneration 45-50 40-45
(Staff trustee) Employer’s pension contributions paid 10-15 10-15

J Gregory Remuneration 55-60 50-55
(Staff trustee) Employer’s pension contributions paid 10-15 10-15

11 Trustees' and officers' insurance

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the
Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

During the period ended 31 August 2023, Educational material totalling £771 were reimbursed or paid directly to
two Trustees (2022: £341 to one Trustee).

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10m. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the
overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

12 Tangible fixed assets

Group

Leasehold
Land and
Buildings

Furniture
and

Equipment
Computer

Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2022 - - 19,719,349 146,692 547,998 20,414,039
Acquisitions - - 1,199,750 25,753 30,535 1,256,038
Disposals - - (908,293) - - (908,293)
At 31 August 2023 - - 20,010,806 172,445 578,533 20,761,784

Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 - - 2,304,980 68,821 441,684 2,815,485
Charged in year - - 286,966 13,171 85,979 386,116
Disposals - - (181,658) - - (181,658)
At 31 August 2023 - - 2,410,288 81,992 527,663 3,019,943

Net book values
At 31 August 2022 - - 17,414,369 77,871 106,314 17,598,554
At 31 August 2023 - - 17,600,518 90,453 50,870 17,741,841

Academy

Leasehold
Land and
Buildings

Furniture
and

Equipment
Computer

Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2022 - - 19,719,349 123,389 547,998 20,390,736
Acquisitions - - 1,199,750 25,753 30,535 1,256,038
Disposals - - (908,293) - - (908,293)
At 31 August 2023 - - 20,010,806 149,142 578,533 20,738,481

Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 - - 2,304,980 55,860 441,684 2,802,524
Charged in year - - 286,966 11,167 85,979 384,112
Disposals - - (181,658) - - (181,658)
At 31 August 2023 - - 2,410,288 67,027 527,663 3,004,978

Net book values
At 31 August 2022 - - 17,414,369 67,529 106,314 17,588,212
At 31 August 2023 - - 17,600,518 82,115 50,870 17,733,503

The Academy Trust’s transactions relating to land and buildings included the disposal of pre-existing assets which
have been replaced during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

13 Investments

14 Debtors

2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
£ £ £ £

Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 4,924 15,027
VAT recoverable 49,305 43,020 49,164 42,543
Other debtors 108,366 33,892 31,356 -
Prepayments and accrued income 391,186 699,026 390,150 698,558

548,857 775,938 475,594 756,128

The investment represents 100% of the ordinary share capital of Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited, whose
principal activity is to carry out trading activities in support of the academy.

AcademyGroup
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
£ £ £ £

Trade creditors 213,110 101,138 204,675 93,765
Other taxation and social security 128,816 113,786 128,816 113,786
Loans falling due within one year 19,930 9,733 - -
Other creditors falling due within one year 140,219 142,303 139,929 141,841
Accruals and deferred income 522,935 165,625 463,211 140,203

1,025,010 532,585 936,631 489,595

2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
£ £ £ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 37,263 25,292 16,840 18,292
Released from previous years (37,263) (25,292) (16,840) (18,292)
Resources deferred in the year 39,025 37,263 12,679 16,840
Deferred income at 31 August 2023 39,025 37,263 12,679 16,840

16 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
£ £ £ £

Loans falling due in greater than one year 105,623 63,966 60,000 -

Group Academy

The Academy Trust received a £60,000 loan for Capital Improvements in the 2022/23 year. Repayments
commence 1 September 2024. The interest rate is 1.49% and the repayment term is fixed at 10 years.

The Academy Trust’s trading subsidiary, Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited, received a loan in the 2021/22
financial year, from one of it Directors, of £50,000. The interest rate is 2% and the repayment term is fixed at 5
years.

The Academy Trust’s trading subsidiary, Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited, received a £50,000 loan in the
2020/2021 year under the government-backed Bounce Back Loan scheme. The government covered any interest
payable in the first 12 months through a Business Interruption Payment to the company. The company benefited
from a 100% government-backed guarantee. The interest rate is 2.5% per annum and the repayment term is fixed
at six years. No repayments were due during the first 12 months.

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for trips for the forthcoming
financial year.

Group Academy

Group Academy
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17 Funds
Balance at

Gains and 31 August
Income Expenditure Transfers losses 2023

£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 453,406 7,486,375 (7,413,584) (233,326) - 292,871
Pupil premium - 250,240 (250,240) - - -
Rates reclaim - 30,720 (30,720) - - -
Other DfE grants - 504,110 (504,110) - - -
Local authority grants - 279,433 (279,433) - - -
Other educational activities - 183,480 (183,480) - - -

453,406 8,734,358 (8,661,567) (233,326) - 292,871
Pension reserve (669,000) - (166,000) - 707,000 (128,000)

(215,594) 8,734,358 (8,827,567) (233,326) 707,000 164,871

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed asset fund 17,598,554 - (1,112,751) 1,256,038 - 17,741,841
ESFA capital grants (DFC) - 77,082 - (77,082) - -
ESFA capital grants (CIF) 930,630 - - (930,630) - -

18,529,184 77,082 (1,112,751) 248,326 - 17,741,841

Total restricted funds 18,313,590 8,811,440 (9,940,318) 15,000 707,000 17,906,712

Total unrestricted funds 530,546 1,097,693 (1,062,582) (15,000) - 550,657

Total funds 18,844,136 9,909,133 (11,002,900) - 707,000 18,457,369

Balance at
1 September

2022
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17 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General annual grant

Other DfE/ESFA grants

Local authority grants

Other educational activities

Pension reserve

Fixed asset fund

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Transfers between funds

This includes all funding received from the ESFA to carry out the objectives of the academy. It includes the school
budget share; minimum funding guarantee; education services grant; insurance; rates; and pre-16 high needs
funding streams.

This is funding received from the ESFA for specific purposes.

This is funding received from the local authority for specific purposes, for example Special Educational Needs
funding.

This includes all other educational income/expenditure.

This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS pension scheme which was transferred
to the Academy Trust on conversion.

The fund includes the value of the tangible fixed assets of the academy on conversion, and amounts transferred
from GAG or other restricted funds specifically for expenditure on tangible fixed assets, and the annual charges
for depreciation of these assets.

This is funding received from the DfE/ESFA specifically for expenditure on capital improvements.

Transfers to the restricted fixed asset fund represent the cost of fixed asset additions which have been funded
from restricted or unrestricted general funds.
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17 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at
Gains and 31 August

Income Expenditure Transfers losses 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 241,551 7,286,068 (7,087,630) 13,417 - 453,406
Pupil premium - 226,452 (226,452) - - -
Rates reclaim - 38,866 (38,866) - - -
Other DfE grants - 190,899 (190,899) - - -
Local authority grants - 194,607 (194,607) - - -
Catch-up premium 75,000 - (75,000) - - -
Other educational activities - 163,439 (163,439) - - -

316,551 8,100,331 (7,976,893) 13,417 - 453,406
Pension reserve (4,885,000) - (767,000) - 4,983,000 (669,000)

(4,568,449) 8,100,331 (8,743,893) 13,417 4,983,000 (215,594)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed asset fund 17,962,143 - (428,226) 64,637 - 17,598,554
ESFA capital grants (DFC) 34,087 26,663 (1,265) (59,485) - -
ESFA capital grants (CIF) - 977,028 (46,398) - - 930,630
Donated fixed assets - 18,569 - (18,569) - -

17,996,230 1,022,260 (475,889) (13,417) - 18,529,184

Total restricted funds 13,427,781 9,122,591 (9,219,782) - 4,983,000 18,313,590

Total unrestricted funds 354,707 970,269 (794,430) - - 530,546

Total funds 13,782,488 10,092,860 (10,014,212) - 4,983,000 18,844,136

Balance at
1 September

2021
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18 Analysis of net assets between funds

Un-
restricted

funds

Restricted
general

funds

Restricted
pension

funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - - 17,741,841 17,741,841
Current assets 550,657 1,423,504 - - 1,974,161
Current liabilities - (1,025,010) - - (1,025,010)
Non-current liabilities - (105,623) - - (105,623)
Pension scheme liability - - (128,000) - (128,000)
Total net assets 550,657 292,871 (128,000) 17,741,841 18,457,369

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Un-
restricted

funds

Restricted
general

funds

Restricted
pension

funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - - 17,598,554 17,598,554
Current assets 530,546 1,049,957 - 930,630 2,511,133
Current liabilities - (532,585) - - (532,585)
Non-current liabilities - (63,966) - - (63,966)
Pension scheme liability - - (669,000) - (669,000)
Total net assets 530,546 453,406 (669,000) 18,529,184 18,844,136

19 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

Operating leases

2022/23 2021/22
£ £

Amounts due within one year 27,269 22,571
Amounts due between one and five years 64,312 63,489
Amounts due after five years 4,481 -

96,062 86,060

At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:
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20 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2022/23 2021/22
£ £

Net (expenditure) / income for the reporting period (1,093,767) 78,648

Adjusted for:
Depreciation 386,116 428,226
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets 726,635 -
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (103,082) (1,022,260)
Interest receivable (11,869) (143)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 136,000 687,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 30,000 80,000
Decrease / (increase) in debtors 422,485 (1,213)
Increase in creditors 214,382 170,446
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 706,900 420,704

21 Cash flows from financing activities

2022/23 2021/22
£ £

Repayments of borrowing 51,854 (26,301)
Cash inflows from new borrowing - 50,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 51,854 23,699

22 Cash flows from investing activities

2022/23 2021/22
£ £

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 11,869 143
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (962,192) (46,068)
Capital grants from DfE Group (118,322) 417,475
Net cash (used in) / provided by investing activities (1,068,645) 371,550

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2022/23 2021/22
£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 1,425,304 1,735,195

54



Wyvern College Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

24 Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 Acquisition/ New Other At 31
September Cash disposal of finance non-cash August

2022 flows subsidiaries leases changes 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cash 1,735,195 (309,891) - - - 1,425,304
Loans falling due within

one year (9,733) (10,197) - - - (19,930)
Loans falling due after

more than one year (63,966) (41,657) - - - (105,623)
Total 1,661,496 (361,745) - - - 1,299,751

25 Member liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.
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26 Pension and similar obligations

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

• employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy).
•

•

total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million.
the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The revised
employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2022.

Contributions amounting to £139,238 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022: £124,340) and are
included within creditors.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

The Academy Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by Hampshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every four years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors.

The 31 March 2016 TPS actuarial valuation results were implemented from 1 September 2019. The key elements
of the valuation and subsequent consultation were:
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

2023 2022
£ £

Employer’s contributions 395,000 347,000
Employees’ contributions 127,000 108,000

522,000 455,000

Principal actuarial assumptions
2023 2022

Rate of increase in salaries 4.0% 3.7%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 3.0% 2.7%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.2% 4.1%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 3.0% 2.7%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 70.0% 70.0%

2023 2022
Retiring today
Males 22.1 22.9
Females 24.7 25.4

Retiring in 20 years
Males 22.6 24.7
Females 25.7 27.1

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department
for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy
Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was as follows:

The agreed contribution rates for future years are 17.9% for employers and 5.5% to 12.5% for employees.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £830,493 (2022: £758,996).
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

2023 2022
£ £

Discount rate +0.1% (158,000) (185,000)
Discount rate -0.1% 158,000 185,000
Mortality assumption – 1 year increase 282,000 192,000
Mortality assumption – 1 year decrease (282,000) (192,000)
CPI rate +0.1% 151,000 163,000
CPI rate -0.1% (151,000) (163,000)

The Academy Trust’s share of the assets in the scheme were:
2023 2022

£ £
Equities 4,089,000 3,723,000
Gilts 2,218,000 977,000
Property 416,000 502,000
Cash and other liquid assets 208,000 58,000
Other (1,000) 1,170,000
Total market value of assets 6,930,000 6,430,000

- -
The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £63,000 (2022: a loss of £418,000).

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
2022/23 2021/22

£ £
Current service cost 531,000 1,034,000
Interest income (272,000) (113,000)
Interest cost 302,000 193,000
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 561,000 1,114,000

Increase/(reduction) in
defined benefit obligation
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2022/23 2021/22

£ £
At 1 September 7,099,000 11,326,000
Current service cost 531,000 1,034,000
Interest cost 302,000 193,000
Employee contributions 127,000 108,000
Actuarial gain (916,000) (5,514,000)
Benefits paid (85,000) (48,000)
At 31 August 7,058,000 7,099,000

Changes in the fair value of Academy Trust’s share of scheme assets:
2022/23 2021/22

£ £
At 1 September 6,430,000 6,441,000
Interest income 272,000 113,000
Actuarial loss (209,000) (531,000)
Employer contributions 395,000 347,000
Employee contributions 127,000 108,000
Benefits paid (85,000) (48,000)
At 31 August 6,930,000 6,430,000

27 Related party transactions

Expenditure Related Party Transactions:

Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited – trading subsidiary.
•

Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited – trading subsidiary.
•

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trustees
have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period:

The Academy Trust’s trading subsidiary, Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited, received a loan in the
previous year from one of it Directors, of £50,000. The interest rate was 2% and the repayment term is fixed
at 5 years.

The Academy Trust received income from Wyvern Community Enterprise Limited totalling £851,031 (2022:
£692,588) during the period for services provided. £4,924 was outstanding at 31 August 2023 (2022:
£15,027). These transactions have been elimiated on consolidation.
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